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" THE SECOND CHURCH IN WYSOX

' grow out of a seccssion from the old chureh, partly on per-
sonal and partly on political grounds. The exscinding act
' of 1837 afforded a pretext for uniting with the presbytery
" of Montrose, which ranged with the New School party. In
 1857-58 thoy built a snug little church. The church was
" served by supplics until about 1860, when Rev. H. J.
" Orane became the pastor, and continued to be until pres-
"~ bytery united the two branches.

There are in the county now sixtoen church organizations,
with the same number of church edifices, and a member-
ship of 1350 souls. Thore are 14 ordaincd mivisters, of
whom G are pastors, 5 are stated supplies, 2 are without
charge, and 1 is honorably retired. <

REFORMED PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH OF ULSTER.
| This church was organiaed May 18, 1855, by Rev. A.
* M. Macauley, 3 commissioner from the Reformed preshytery
| 4f Philudelphia. Ho was assisted in the organization by
 the Rev. Samuel Wylie, of the Western Reformed presby-
" tery. At the organization there were 26 members, but &
ghort time after 25 more were added to the number. The
Rev. Robert Stevenson was ordained and installed pastor of
the church July 11, 1861; the ordination sermon was
preached by the Rev. T. W. J. Wylie, D.D., and the Rev.
* W. Sterret gave the charge to the pastor and people. Soon
 after their organization they erceted a house of worship,
* and also a comfortable parsonage. Mr. Stovenson left in
© 1867. Before his pastorate the church was supplied by
different individuals, sometimes statedly, sometimes irregu-
larly. Since 1869 they have had preaching regularly every
alternate Sabbath.

The organization of the Reformed Presbyterian church of
Ulster was brought about in the following manner. As

L the Hon. James Pollock, a short time before his election as

governor of Pennsylvania, was traveling through Bradford
County, he was accosted by two farmers, whose faces bare
evidence that they were earnest and honest men, while
~ their record showed that they had been lmrn in LM land of
the C One of th T @
connoction of John Howie, so well known as the author of
and the other—Walter Pollock—of
the kindred of the author of the “ Course of Time.”
Having been informed that Mr. Pollock was a Reformed
Preshyterian, they made known to him their desire to ob-
tain preaching from the ministers of that denomination, as
they had been connected with it in Scotland. Mr. Pollock
presented their case to some ministers in Philadolphia, and
in due time a church was organized, as slrcady stated.

BALLIBAY CONOREGATION (COVENANTERS®).

A nuwber of Trish Presbyterians, mostly from the county
of Monaghan, emigrated to Peansylvania mors than half 2
century ago, and settled within a few miles of Wyalusing.
Tn 1832, Rev. David Scott organized them into a congrega-
tion, with George Gawble and William Morrow as elders.
In 1833, Mr. Gamble and a part of the members went with
the  New Lights,” and the congregation was disorganized.

Mr. Morrow and the remainder contioued faithful to their
principles, and sought supplies. For about four years they
received oceasional preaching from Rev. Mr. Douglass, W.
B. Williams, and others, but for the most part from Mr.
Francis Gayley, a licentiate. They appreciated him highly
as an able and faithful preacher, and when, in 1838, he
withdrew from the chureh, they all followed him. Under
his ministry they continued faithfully to adhere to Refor-
mation prineiples, read the old authors, studied the, Bible
diligently, and were intelligent and carnest Christians. At
length, in 1859, Mr. Gayley proposed to assume ministerial
fanctions and re-baptize all his followers. To this they
would not consent, and nearly all left him. They however
adhered faithfully to the Covenanter faith. As early as
1873 or 1874 they were visited by some of the ministers
of the Reformed Presbyterian church, and Aug. 28, 1875,
they were reorganized into a comgregation at Ballibay.
Seven of the old organization of 1832 were incorporated
into the new one, and twelve united with them on profes-
sion of their faith,—nineteen in all. Dr. F. G. Morrow
and Richard Graham were elected elders, and John Bran-
yan and Newton J. Morrow deacons.  Serviees are held in
the school-house in Ballibay, in the township of Herrick.
They are connected with the New York presbytery, which
sends supplies to them at stated periods to preach and
administer the sacraments.

PROTESTANT BPISOOPAL CHURCH 1N BRADFORD

The history of the Protestant Episcopal church in Brad-
ford Cunty is not a record of rapid and continuous progress,
but rather of constant struggle and missionary effort.

ST. MATTHEW'S CHURCH, PIKE.

‘The first church organized and admitted into union with
the convention was St. Matthew’s church, in Pike town-
ship. This was iv 1814, and among the persons applying
for a charter were Dimon Bostwick, Benajah Bostwick,
Jabez Bosworth, Salmon Bosworth, Daniel Ross, and David
Olmstead. Rev. Maoning B. Roche was the first rector.
For several years the congregation assembled for worship in
the upper part of a store owned by Salmon Bosworth. The
church building was erccted in the year 1820, and.conse-
erated soon afterwards by Bishop White, who was accompa-
nied from Philadelphia by Rev. Jackson Kemper, after-
wards missionary bishop of the northwest and of the dio-
cese of Wisconsin, In the year 1825, Rev. Samuel Marks,
a missionary of  the Society for the advancement of Chris-
tianity in Pennsylvania,” for the counties of Bradford and
Susquehanna, became rector of this church, aod the same
year orgavized a Sunday-school. The number of com-
‘municants connected with this church at that time was
twenty. Rev. Bamuel Marks continued reetor, except dur-
ing 1831 and 1832, until 1834; he is now over e
years of age, and rector of Clmu church, Huron, Ohi

His sueccessors in St. Matthew's chumh bave been Rev.
Samuel Tiffany Lord, Rev. Freeman Lane, Rev. Barclay A.
Swith, all now deccased, Rev. De Witt C. Bylleshy, now
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living in Roselle, N. J., Rev. Hale Townsend, now of
Charles City, Towa, Rev. William Smith Heaton, now city
‘missionary io Philsdelphia, and Rev. Gearge Paine Hop-
kins, a hale and hearty old gentleman, who is flling the
rectorship for the third time.

CHRIST CHURCH, ATHENS.

Rev. Samuel Tiffany Lord, a missionary of the “Society
for the advancement of Christianity,” organized a church
at Athens, under the name of Christ church, on Aug, 30,
1833, Athens was at this time in a decliniog condition,
and this organization did not besome permanent, so that.
in about three years services were given up and the chureh
disbanded.

CHRIST CHURCH, TOWANDA.

Rev. Samuel Tiffany Lord, in addition to his labors at
Athens, held oocasional services during the autumn of 1833
in Towanda, and in December began to officiate there regu-
larly every Sunday. Among the laymen who were active
in introducing the services of the ehurch in Towanda were
Heory 8. Mercur, M. C. Mercar, 0. D. Bartlett, aud Mark
Miller. The church sorvices were held for & number of
years ia the old court-house, and the Sunday-school in the
old “ fireproaf” belonging to the county was taught by M.
C. Mercar, O. D. Bartlott, and Miss Mary Woodruff.
Antes Soyder, Wm, B. Foster, Jr., and Abraham Goodwin
were prominent membors of the chureh in its early days.

In 1840, Rev. Robert G. Hays, in charge of the porish,
reported to the convention that the smount necessary to
complete  frame church. thirty-six foet froat by Ry feet
deep, had been mised. The money appears to have been®
subseribed but not all paid.

Dec. 20, 1841, the court granted a charter, under the
name of Christ's church, to Wm. B. Foster, Jr., 0. D.
Bartlett, Abraham Goodwin, John N. Weston, M.D,, C.
L. Ward, M. C. Merour, David Wilmot, and their succes-
sors. The year 1842 was one of almost unparalleled financial
difficulties and distress in the community, but notwithstand-
ing the church was completed in this year and an organ

purchased.

In this year Rev. George Watson beeame restor, and in
1844 the church was admitted into union with the eonvention,
Rev. Asa 8. Colton became rector of this church Jan. 1,1845.
In 1847, Rev. Robert J. Parvin was elctod rector, aod en-
tered on his duties Scptember 12, and the chureh b

the first Sunday, August, 1866, and remained in charge
about three years.

On the first Sunday in January, 1870, Rev. William
MoGlathery became rector, and held the position @il the
antumn of 1873 On Oct. 21, 1873, the vestry extended
a uoanimous call to Rev. Charles Ewbank Mellvaive, son
of the late Bishop Charles P. Mellvaine, of Ohio, to become
rector of the parish, and on Sunday, Nov. 30, he entered
on his duties. In December, 1875, while officiating at a
fancral of a child, he caught a viclent cold which settled
on his lungs, avd on Feb. 22, 1876, he died at the rectory,
t0 the great grief of bis funily and the congregation.
Funeral services were held in Christ church by Rev. F. D.
Hosking, of Elmirs, and Rev. A. Augustus Marple, of
anmn His remains were taken to Wilmington, Del.,

n charge of a committee of the vestry and congregation,
nd after faneral services in 8t. Andrew's church, of which
his father-in-law Bishop Alired Les is rector, were com-
miitted to the earth in Old Swedes' cemetery.

After the death of Mr. Mellvaine the church was served
by Rev. Wm. Atwill, of Elmira, and Rev. J. MeA. Har-
ding, of Athens, and by lay reading, until the present reo-
tor, Rev. John 8. Beers, entered on his rectorship, Sunday,
Sept. 17, 1876. During the last three months of 1877
the church has been enlarged by the sddition of a recess
chancsl, a library-room, a vestry-room, and a number of new
pews. The organ has beon moved to the chancel end of
the church. The galleries have been removed, and the
whole interior has been handsomely papered and painted,
and made an attractive pluce of worship. Since the or-
ganization of the 435 persons have been baptized
and 278 confirmed, and the church is steadily progressing
in influence and memberslip.

For many yeurs the Sunday-school of Christ church has
been very flourishing. Mr. B. 8. Russell, now of Phila-
delphia, was the superintendent for sbout fteen years.
Mr. S. W. Alvord was his succsssor. The present super-
intendent is Mr. B. T. Fox, who performs the duties of his
‘position with ability and seal. Nearly all the rectors of
this church have held frequent mission services outside of
their parish bounds, sometimes even going into adjoining
‘counties.

TRINITY OHUROH, ATHENS.
Bg Freeman Lane, rector of St. Andrew's church,

supporting. I 1849 the church was altered and enlarged,
and a bell procured. Rev. Beojamin J. Dougliss succeeded
to the rectorship June 20, 1850, and continued in charge of
the church till April 11, 1866. During the first year of
his pastorate the church debt was entirely paid off. During
his second year the exterior of the chureh was painted and
& tower erected. During 1853 and 1854, more than $2000
was raised by the congregation, and & rectory built. The
months of January, February, and March, 1868, witnessed
& deep religious interest in the community, and on April
11, the occasion of Mr. Douglass’ Jast ministration in this
chursh, he presented Bifty-five candidates 1o Bishop Vail,
acting for Bishop Stevens, the bishop of the diocese, for
confirmation.

Rev. Francis D. Hoskins catered on the rectorship on

ity, reports that he held ocea-
sional servioes Ill 1837, but that the church was foeble,
and unable to seours clerical services.

In 1839, Rev. Robert G. Hays, officiating at Christ
church, Towanda, preached occasionally at Athens, and
reported that the people were making an effort w0 erect &
chapel. This effort amounted to little at that time. In
1842 the Episcopalians met and reorganized & parish under
the name of Trinity church, and elected Rev. George P.
Hopkins rector. The services were at first held in a school-
house, but befors May, 1848; church building was erected.

In August, 1843, Rev. George Watson, ector of Christ
church, Towanda, became rector of this parish also. In
August, 1845, Rev. A. Augustus Marple, then in deacon's
orders, weat to Athens by direction of the bishop, and held
servioes twice a week for nive weeks, when he accepted a
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